

FORTY-SEVENTH DAY

St. Paul, Minnesota, Thursday, April 27, 2017

The Senate met at 11:00 a.m. and was called to order by the President.

**CALL OF THE SENATE**

Senator Gazelka imposed a call of the Senate. The Sergeant at Arms was instructed to bring in the absent members.

Prayer was offered by the Chaplain, Rev. Michael McClellan.

The members of the Senate gave the pledge of allegiance to the flag of the United States of America.

The roll was called, and the following Senators answered to their names:

Abeler	Dziedzic	Housley	Limmer	Rest
Anderson, B.	Eaton	Ingebrigtsen	Little	Rosen
Anderson, P.	Eichorn	Isaacson	Lourey	Rud
Bakk	Eken	Jasinski	Marty	Schoen
Benson	Fischbach	Jensen	Mathews	Senjem
Carlson	Franzen	Johnson	Miller	Simonson
Chamberlain	Frentz	Kent	Nelson	Sparks
Champion	Gazelka	Kiffmeyer	Newman	Tomassoni
Cohen	Goggin	Klein	Newton	Utke
Cwodzinski	Hall	Koran	Osmek	Weber
Dahms	Hawj	Laine	Pappas	Westrom
Dibble	Hayden	Lang	Pratt	Wiger
Draheim	Hoffman	Latz	Relph	Wiklund

The President declared a quorum present.

The reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal, as printed and corrected, was approved.

**MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE**

Madam President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following Senate Files, herewith returned: S.F. Nos. 341 and 562.

Patrick D. Murphy, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Returned April 24, 2017

Madam President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following House Files, herewith transmitted: H.F. Nos. 812, 809, and 1712.

Patrick D. Murphy, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Transmitted April 24, 2017

### FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time.

**H.F. No. 812:** A bill for an act relating to health; requiring licensure of abortion facilities; requiring a licensing fee; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 145.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison with S.F. No. 704.

**H.F. No. 809:** A bill for an act relating to health; limiting use of funds for state-sponsored health programs for funding abortions.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison with S.F. No. 702, now on General Orders.

**H.F. No. 1712:** A bill for an act relating to health occupations; modifying the requirements for collaborative community dental hygiene services; establishing requirements for collaborative community dental assisting services; amending Minnesota Statutes 2016, sections 150A.10, subdivision 1a, by adding a subdivision; 150A.105, subdivision 8.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison with S.F. No. 1496, now on General Orders.

### REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Senator Gazelka moved that the Committee Reports at the Desk be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

#### **Senator Rosen from the Committee on Finance, to which was re-referred**

**S.F. No. 514:** A bill for an act relating to elections; modifying provisions related to elections and election administration; establishing a voting equipment grant; establishing uniform election dates, polling place hours, and polling places; requiring counties to administer school district elections; requiring additional voter data to be public; modifying voter status challenge provisions; establishing a provisional ballot system; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2016,

sections 3.088, subdivision 1; 13.15, subdivision 4; 13.607, by adding a subdivision; 13.6905, subdivision 33; 13.841, subdivision 3; 13.851, subdivision 10; 103B.545, subdivision 2; 123A.46, subdivision 12; 123A.48, subdivisions 14, 15; 123B.09, subdivision 5b; 123B.63, subdivision 3; 126C.17, subdivision 11; 126C.69, subdivision 11; 128D.05, subdivision 2; 200.02, subdivision 4, by adding subdivisions; 201.022, subdivision 1; 201.061, subdivisions 3, 6; 201.091, subdivision 4; 201.121, subdivision 3; 201.225, subdivisions 1, 2, 6; 201.27, subdivision 2; 203B.01, subdivision 2; 203B.04, subdivision 1; 203B.05, subdivision 2; 203B.081, subdivision 1; 203B.085; 203B.11, subdivision 1; 203B.121, subdivisions 1, 2; 203B.15; 204B.09, subdivision 3; 204B.13, subdivision 1; 204B.16, subdivisions 1, 1a; 204B.181, subdivision 2; 204B.21, subdivision 2, by adding a subdivision; 204B.25, subdivision 4; 204B.29; 204B.32; 204B.40; 204B.46; 204C.08, subdivision 4; 204C.10; 204C.12, subdivisions 1, 2, 3; 204C.14, subdivision 1; 204C.20, subdivision 4; 204C.25; 204C.26, subdivision 3; 204C.27; 204C.28, subdivision 3; 204C.29, subdivision 1; 204C.32, subdivision 2; 204C.33, subdivision 3; 204C.36, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 5; 204D.09, subdivision 1; 204D.19, by adding a subdivision; 205.065, subdivision 5; 205.07, subdivisions 1, 3; 205.10, subdivision 4, by adding a subdivision; 205A.03, subdivisions 3, 4; 205A.04, subdivision 3; 205A.05, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, by adding a subdivision; 205A.055, subdivision 2; 205A.06, subdivisions 1, 1a, 2, 5; 205A.07, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 3a, 3b; 205A.08, subdivision 5; 205A.10, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 5; 205A.11, subdivision 2a; 206.805, subdivision 1; 208.04, subdivision 1; 209.021, subdivision 3; 211B.11, subdivision 1; 216B.46; 241.065, subdivision 2; 365A.06, subdivision 2; 367.33, subdivision 1; 375.101, subdivision 1; 375B.07, subdivision 2; 375B.10; 383B.031, subdivision 1; 383E.24, subdivision 7; 410.10, subdivision 1; 447.32, subdivision 2; 475.59; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 201; 204C; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2016, sections 201.096; 201.15; 201.155; 201.157; 201.158; 204B.16, subdivision 3; 205.10, subdivision 3; 205.175; 205A.09; 205A.11, subdivisions 2, 3; 205A.12, subdivision 5a.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, lines 17 and 20, strike "no later than" and insert "on"

Page 2, after line 33, insert:

"Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 200.02, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 29. **Original signature.** "Original signature" does not include an electronic signature."

Page 10, line 16, after the first period, insert "The secretary of state may retain up to \$80,000 for administrative costs."

Page 16, after line 12, insert:

"Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 205.175, is amended to read:

**205.175 TOWN VOTING HOURS.**

Subdivision 1. **Minimum voting hours; towns.** In all ~~municipal~~ town elections, the polling places will remain open for voting from 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.

Subd. 2. **Metropolitan area ~~municipalities~~ towns.** The ~~governing body of a municipality which~~ town board that is located within a metropolitan county included in the definition of metropolitan

area in section 200.02, subdivision 24, may designate the time during which the polling places will remain open for voting at the next succeeding and all subsequent ~~municipal town~~ elections, provided that the polling places ~~shall~~ must open no later than 10:00 a.m. and ~~shall~~ must close no earlier than 8:00 p.m. The resolution ~~shall~~ must remain in force until it is revoked by the ~~municipal governing body town board~~.

Subd. 3. **Other municipalities towns.** The ~~governing body of a municipality town board~~ other than a ~~municipality town~~ described in subdivision 2, may by resolution adopted prior to giving notice of the election, designate the time, in addition to the minimum voting hours provided in subdivision 1, during which the polling places will remain open for voting at the next succeeding and all subsequent ~~municipal town~~ elections. The resolution ~~shall~~ must remain in force until it is revoked by the ~~municipal governing body town board~~ or changed because of request by voters as provided in this subdivision. If a petition requesting longer voting hours, signed by a number of voters equal to 20 percent of the votes cast at the last ~~municipal town~~ election, is presented to the ~~municipal town~~ clerk no later than 30 days prior to the ~~municipal town~~ election, then the polling places for that election ~~shall~~ must open at 10:00 a.m. and close at 8:00 p.m. The ~~municipal town~~ clerk ~~shall~~ must give ten days' notice of the changed voting hours and notify the county auditor of the change. Municipalities Towns covered by this subdivision ~~shall~~ must certify their election hours to the county auditor in January of each year."

Page 22, line 23, delete everything after the semicolon and insert "and 205.10, subdivision 3"

Page 22, line 24, delete "205.175"

Page 52, line 12, delete "29" and insert "30"

Page 52, after line 14, insert:

"Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 201.061, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Registration by election judges; procedures.** Registration at the polling place on election day shall be conducted by the election judges. Before registering an individual to vote at the polling place, the election judge must review: (1) any list of absentee election day registrants provided by the county auditor or municipal clerk to see if the person has already voted by absentee ballot; and (2) the precinct list of challenged voters required under section 201.145, subdivision 1, paragraph (c). If the person's name appears on the either list, the election judge must not allow the individual to register or to vote in the polling place. The election judge who registers an individual at the polling place on election day shall not handle that voter's ballots at any time prior to the opening of the ballot box after the voting ends. Registration applications and forms for oaths shall be available at each polling place. If an individual who registers on election day proves residence by oath of a registered voter, the form containing the oath shall be attached to the individual's registration application. Registration applications completed on election day shall be forwarded to the county auditor who shall add the name of each voter to the registration system unless the information forwarded is substantially deficient. A county auditor who finds an election day registration substantially deficient shall give written notice to the individual whose registration is found deficient. An election day registration shall not be found deficient solely because the individual who provided proof of residence was ineligible to do so."

Page 54, line 15, after "(a)" insert "Reports required by this section must be submitted to the secretary of state as provided in this section."

Page 54, after line 25, insert:

"(c) No sooner than seven days before an election, the secretary of state must prepare and transmit to each county auditor a single list for each precinct in that county that includes each individual identified in a report required by this section. Each county auditor must ensure that at least one copy of the precinct list is delivered to the corresponding precinct polling place."

Page 55, line 11, after "individuals" insert "17 years of age or older"

Page 56, line 28, delete "noncitizens" and insert "having temporary lawful status in the United States"

Page 57, line 6, delete "(b)" and insert "(c)"

Page 59, delete section 12 and insert:

"Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 204B.21, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 3. **Access to election judge party affiliation.** Notwithstanding section 13.43, the major political party affiliation of an election judge or a statement that the judge does not affiliate with a major political party is accessible to an individual who is appointed to serve as an election judge in the same precinct for the same election."

Page 59, line 31, after the period, insert "Unless the challenge is resolved pursuant to section 204C.12, subdivision 3,"

Page 63, after line 31, insert:

"Sec. 21. **INITIAL REPORT ON GUARDIANSHIPS, LEGAL INCOMPETENCE, FELONY CONVICTIONS, AND CITIZENSHIP, AND STATUS CHANGES.**

Subdivision 1. **Court administrator initial report.** (a) By July 1, 2017, the state court administrator must report to the secretary of state on the following groups of individuals:

(1) each individual 17 years of age or older who are under a guardianship in which a court order revokes the ward's right to vote or where the court has found the individual to be legally incompetent to vote;

(2) each individual 17 years of age or older who has been convicted of a felony;

(3) each individual whose guardianship was modified to restore the ward's right to vote or whose guardianship was terminated by order of the court under Minnesota Statutes, section 524.5-317, after being ineligible to vote for any of the reasons specified in subdivision 2, paragraph (a); and

(4) each individual previously convicted of a felony whose civil rights have been restored.

(b) Each report under this subdivision must include the following information for each individual: name, address, date of birth, and, if available, the last four digits of the Social Security number. For reports required by paragraph (a), clauses (2) and (4), each report must also include the individual's, if available: corrections' state identification number, driver's license or state identification card number, date of sentence, effective date of the sentence, county in which the conviction occurred, and date of discharge.

Subd. 2. **Commissioner of corrections initial report.** (a) By July 1, 2017, the commissioner of corrections must report to the secretary of state on the following groups of individuals:

(1) each individual 17 years of age or older who are currently:

(i) serving felony sentences under the commissioner's jurisdiction; or

(ii) on probation for felony offenses that resulted in the loss of civil rights, as indicated by the statewide supervision system established under Minnesota Statutes, section 241.065; and

(2) each individual who was serving a felony sentence under the commissioner's jurisdiction or who was on probation for a felony offense under the commissioner's jurisdiction that resulted in the loss of civil rights but who has been discharged from the sentence.

(b) Each report under this subdivision must include the following information for each individual: name, address or last known residential address that is not a correctional facility, and date of birth. If available, each report must also include the individual's: corrections' state identification number, last four digits of the Social Security number, driver's license or state identification card number, date of sentence, effective date of the sentence, county in which the conviction occurred, and date of discharge.

Subd. 3. **Commissioner of public safety initial report.** By July 1, 2017, the commissioner of public safety must report to the secretary of state on each individual identified by the department as having temporary lawful status in the United States. The report section must include the following information for each individual: name, address, date of birth, driver's license or state identification card number, and, if available, last four digits of the Social Security number.

Subd. 4. **Initial report use.** The secretary of state must enter all information from each report received under this section into the statewide voter registration system. The reports must be retained in the statewide voter registration system in a manner that allows users to search the reports for a particular date.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment."

Renumber the sections in sequence and correct the internal references

Amend the title numbers accordingly

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Rosen from the Committee on Finance, to which was re-referred**

**S.F. No. 704:** A bill for an act relating to health; requiring licensure of certain facilities that perform abortions; requiring a licensing fee; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 145.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. **[145.4161] LICENSURE OF ABORTION FACILITIES.**

Subdivision 1. **Definitions.** (a) For purposes of this section, the following definitions apply.

(b) "Abortion facility" means a clinic, health center, or other facility in which the pregnancies of ten or more women known to be pregnant are willfully terminated or aborted each month. A facility licensed as a hospital or as an outpatient surgical center, pursuant to sections 144.50 to 144.56, shall not be considered an abortion facility.

(c) "Accrediting or membership organization" means a national organization that establishes evidence-based clinical standards for abortion care and accredits abortion facilities or accepts as members abortion facilities following an application and inspection process.

(d) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of health.

Subd. 2. **License required.** (a) Beginning July 1, 2018, no abortion facility shall be established, operated, or maintained in the state without first obtaining a license from the commissioner according to this section.

(b) A license issued under this section is not transferable or assignable and is subject to suspension or revocation at any time for failure to comply with this section.

(c) If a single entity maintains abortion facilities on different premises, each facility must obtain a separate license.

(d) To be eligible for licensure under this section, an abortion facility must be accredited or a member of an accrediting or membership organization or must obtain accreditation or membership within six months of the date of the application for licensure. If the abortion facility loses its accreditation or membership, the abortion facility must immediately notify the commissioner.

(e) The commissioner, the attorney general, an appropriate county attorney, or a woman upon whom an abortion has been performed or attempted to be performed at an unlicensed facility may seek an injunction in district court against the continued operation of the facility. Proceedings for securing an injunction may be brought by the attorney general or by the appropriate county attorney.

(f) Sanctions provided in this subdivision do not restrict other available sanctions.

Subd. 3. **Temporary license.** For new abortion facilities planning to begin operations after July 1, 2018, the commissioner may issue a temporary license to the abortion facility that is valid for a period of six months from the date of issuance. The abortion facility must submit to the commissioner

an application and applicable fee for licensure as required under subdivisions 4 and 7. The application must include the information required under subdivision 4, clauses (1), (2), (3), (5), and (6), and provide documentation that the abortion facility has submitted the application for accreditation or membership from an accrediting or membership organization. Upon receipt of accreditation or membership verification, the abortion facility must submit to the commissioner the information required in subdivision 4, clause (4), and the applicable fee under subdivision 7. The commissioner shall then issue a new license.

Subd. 4. **Application.** An application for a license to operate an abortion facility and the applicable fee under subdivision 7 must be submitted to the commissioner on a form provided by the commissioner and must contain:

(1) the name of the applicant;

(2) the site location of the abortion facility;

(3) the name of the person in charge of the facility;

(4) documentation that the abortion facility is accredited or an approved member of an accrediting or membership organization, including the effective date and the expiration date of the accreditation or membership, and the date of the last site visit by the accrediting or membership organization;

(5) the names and license numbers, if applicable, of the health care professionals on staff at the abortion facility; and

(6) any other information the commissioner deems necessary.

Subd. 5. **Inspections.** Prior to initial licensure and at least once every two years thereafter, the commissioner shall perform a routine and comprehensive inspection of each abortion facility. Facilities shall be open at all reasonable times to an inspection authorized in writing by the commissioner. No notice need be given to any person prior to an inspection authorized by the commissioner.

Subd. 6. **Suspension, revocation, and refusal to renew.** The commissioner may refuse to grant or renew, or may suspend or revoke, a license on any of the grounds described under section 144.55, subdivision 6, paragraph (a), clause (2), (3), or (4), or upon the loss of accreditation or membership as described in subdivision 4, clause (4). The applicant or licensee is entitled to notice and a hearing as described under section 144.55, subdivision 7, and a new license may be issued after proper inspection of an abortion facility has been conducted.

Subd. 7. **Fees.** (a) The biennial license fee for abortion facilities is \$365.

(b) The temporary license fee is \$365.

(c) Fees shall be collected and deposited according to section 144.122.

Subd. 8. **Renewal.** (a) A license issued under this section expires two years from the date of issue.



(b) A temporary license issued under this section expires six months from the date of issue and may be renewed for one additional six-month period.

Subd. 9. **Records.** All health records maintained on each client by an abortion facility are subject to sections 144.292 to 144.298.

Subd. 10. **Severability.** If any one or more provision, section, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this section or the application of it to any person or circumstance is found to be unconstitutional, it is declared to be severable and the balance of this section shall remain effective notwithstanding such unconstitutionality. The legislature intends that it would have passed this section, and each provision, section, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or word, regardless of the fact that any one provision, section, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or word is declared unconstitutional.

Sec. 2. **APPROPRIATION.**

\$55,000 in fiscal year 2018 and \$8,000 in fiscal year 2019 are appropriated from the state government special revenue fund to the commissioner of health for licensing activities under Minnesota Statutes, section 145.4161. The base for this program is \$42,000 in fiscal year 2020 and \$8,000 in fiscal year 2021."

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Gazelka, from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred**

**H.F. No. 593** for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found not identical with companion Senate File as follows:

<b>GENERAL ORDERS</b>		<b>CONSENT CALENDAR</b>		<b>CALENDAR</b>	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
593	366				

Pursuant to Rule 45, the Committee on Rules and Administration recommends that H.F. No. 593 be amended as follows:

Delete all the language after the enacting clause of H.F. No. 593, the second engrossment; and insert the language after the enacting clause of S.F. No. 366, the second engrossment; further, delete the title of H.F. No. 593, the second engrossment; and insert the title of S.F. No. 366, the second engrossment.

And when so amended H.F. No. 593 will be identical to S.F. No. 366, and further recommends that H.F. No. 593 be given its second reading and substituted for S.F. No. 366, and that the Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 45, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Gazelka, from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred**

**H.F. No. 676** for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found not identical with companion Senate File as follows:

<b>GENERAL ORDERS</b>		<b>CONSENT CALENDAR</b>		<b>CALENDAR</b>	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
676	1445				

Pursuant to Rule 45, the Committee on Rules and Administration recommends that H.F. No. 676 be amended as follows:

Delete all the language after the enacting clause of H.F. No. 676, the first engrossment; and insert the language after the enacting clause of S.F. No. 1445, the first engrossment; further, delete the title of H.F. No. 676, the first engrossment; and insert the title of S.F. No. 1445, the first engrossment.

And when so amended H.F. No. 676 will be identical to S.F. No. 1445, and further recommends that H.F. No. 676 be given its second reading and substituted for S.F. No. 1445, and that the Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 45, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Gazelka, from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred**

**H.F. No. 1732** for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found not identical with companion Senate File as follows:

<b>GENERAL ORDERS</b>		<b>CONSENT CALENDAR</b>		<b>CALENDAR</b>	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
1732	1563				

Pursuant to Rule 45, the Committee on Rules and Administration recommends that H.F. No. 1732 be amended as follows:

Delete all the language after the enacting clause of H.F. No. 1732, the second engrossment; and insert the language after the enacting clause of S.F. No. 1563, the second engrossment; further, delete the title of H.F. No. 1732, the second engrossment; and insert the title of S.F. No. 1563, the second engrossment.

And when so amended H.F. No. 1732 will be identical to S.F. No. 1563, and further recommends that H.F. No. 1732 be given its second reading and substituted for S.F. No. 1563, and that the Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 45, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

**Senator Gazelka, from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred**

**H.F. No. 1477** for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found identical and recommends the House File be given its second reading and substituted for its companion Senate File as follows:

<b>GENERAL ORDERS</b>		<b>CONSENT CALENDAR</b>		<b>CALENDAR</b>	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
1477	1190				

and that the above Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 45, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Report adopted.

**Senator Gazelka, from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred**

**H.F. No. 1397** for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found identical and recommends the House File be given its second reading and substituted for its companion Senate File as follows:

<b>GENERAL ORDERS</b>		<b>CONSENT CALENDAR</b>		<b>CALENDAR</b>	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
1397	1243				

and that the above Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 45, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Report adopted.

**Senator Gazelka, from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred**

**H.F. No. 1294** for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found identical and recommends the House File be given its second reading and substituted for its companion Senate File as follows:

<b>GENERAL ORDERS</b>		<b>CONSENT CALENDAR</b>		<b>CALENDAR</b>	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
1294	1072				

and that the above Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 45, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Report adopted.

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS**

S.F. Nos. 514 and 704 were read the second time.

**SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS**

H.F. Nos. 593, 676, 1732, 1477, 1397, and 1294 were read the second time.

**INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS**

The following bills were read the first time.

**Senators Simonson and Dibble introduced--**

**S.F. No. 2345:** A bill for an act relating to transportation; appropriating money for a passenger rail demonstration project and a Northstar commuter rail extension feasibility study.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation Finance and Policy.

**Senators Limmer, Schoen, Nelson, Dziedzic, and Ingebrigtsen introduced--**

**S.F. No. 2346:** A bill for an act relating to domestic violence; permitting a court order transferring wireless phone number and billing responsibility; amending Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 518B.01, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary and Public Safety Finance and Policy.

**Senators Clausen, Carlson, Dibble, and Frenz introduced--**

**S.F. No. 2347:** A bill for an act relating to transportation; modifying right-of-way provisions for semitrailers and oversize vehicles in roundabouts; amending Minnesota Statutes 2016, sections 169.18, subdivision 7; 169.20, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation Finance and Policy.

**Senators Dziedzic and Relph introduced--**

**S.F. No. 2348:** A bill for an act relating to state government; establishing an Americans with Disabilities Act Notice to Businesses Working Group; requiring a report.

Referred to the Committee on Jobs and Economic Growth Finance and Policy.

**Senator Housley introduced--**

**S.F. No. 2349:** A bill for an act relating to health; requiring recommendations for safety and quality improvement practices for long-term services and supports; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Aging and Long-term Care Policy.

**Senator Housley introduced--**

**S.F. No. 2350:** A bill for an act relating to child protection; modifying agency responsibility for assessing and investigating child maltreatment allegations; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 626.556, subdivision 3c.

Referred to the Committee on Human Services Reform Finance and Policy.

**Senator Housley introduced--**

**S.F. No. 2351:** A bill for an act relating to human services; modifying child care program integrity provisions; amending Minnesota Statutes 2016, sections 119B.011, by adding subdivisions; 119B.02, subdivision 5; 119B.09, subdivision 9a; 119B.125, subdivisions 4, 6; 119B.13, subdivisions 1, 6; 119B.16, subdivisions 1, 1a, 1b, by adding subdivisions; 245E.01, by adding a subdivision; 245E.02, subdivisions 1, 3, 4; 245E.03, subdivisions 2, 4; 245E.04; 245E.05, subdivision 1; 245E.06, subdivisions 1, 2, 3; 245E.07, subdivision 1; 256.98, subdivision 8; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 119B; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2016, sections 119B.16, subdivision 2; 245E.03, subdivision 3; 245E.06, subdivisions 4, 5; Minnesota Rules, part 3400.0185, subpart 5.

Referred to the Committee on Human Services Reform Finance and Policy.

**Senators Anderson, P.; Pratt; Miller; Benson; and Frentz introduced--**

**S.F. No. 2352:** A bill for an act relating to education; implementing recommendations from the Office of the Legislative Auditor's April 2017 evaluation report of the Minnesota State High School League; amending Minnesota Statutes 2016, sections 128C.02, subdivision 6; 128C.03; 128C.20, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on E-12 Policy.

**Senator Relph introduced--**

**S.F. No. 2353:** A bill for an act relating to health; appropriating money to the commissioner of health to regulate health care and home care settings.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services Finance and Policy.

**Senator Nelson introduced--**

**S.F. No. 2354:** A bill for an act relating to capital investment; appropriating money for a wastewater treatment facility in Stewartville; authorizing the sale and issuance of state bonds.

Referred to the Committee on Capital Investment.

**MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS**

Senator Lourey moved that his name be stricken as chief author, shown as a co-author, and the name of Senator Jensen be added as chief author to S.F. No. 216. The motion prevailed.

Senator Ruud moved that her name be stricken as a co-author to S.F. No. 1381. The motion prevailed.

Senator Clausen moved that his name be stricken as a co-author to S.F. No. 1935. The motion prevailed.

Senator Hoffman moved that the name of Senator Abeler be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2035. The motion prevailed.

Senator Dziedzic moved that the name of Senator Lourey be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2132. The motion prevailed.

Senator Ruud moved that the name of Senator Newton be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2189. The motion prevailed.

Senator Ruud moved that the name of Senator Newton be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2258. The motion prevailed.

**Senators Hoffman, Hawj, Schoen, Eaton, and Newton introduced --**

**Senate Resolution No. 83:** A Senate resolution recognizing the Lao Freedom Fighters and the people of the former Kingdom of Laos.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

**Senator Franzen introduced --**

**Senate Resolution No. 84:** A Senate resolution congratulating the Edina High School girls hockey team on winning the 2017 State High School Class AA girls hockey championship.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

**SPECIAL ORDERS**

Pursuant to Rule 26, Senator Gazelka, Chair of the Committee on Rules and Administration, designated the following bills a Special Orders Calendar to be heard immediately:

H.F. No. 778, S.F. Nos. 879, 997, 1627, 1549, and 1457.

Pursuant to Rule 26, Senator Gazelka, Chair of the Committee on Rules and Administration, designated #.F. No. # a Special Order to be heard immediately.

**SPECIAL ORDER**

**H.F. No. 778:** A bill for an act relating to the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority; providing for classification of certain data; modifying appointments to the authority board; modifying duties; restricting the use of stadium suites; amending Minnesota Statutes 2016, sections 13.55, subdivision 2; 473J.07, subdivisions 2, 3, 4, 8, by adding a subdivision; 473J.09, subdivisions 6, 13, by adding

subdivisions; 473J.13, by adding a subdivision; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 473J.09, subdivision 14.

Senator Rosen moved to amend H.F. No. 778, the unofficial engrossment, as follows:

Page 1, after line 8, insert:

## "ARTICLE 1

### MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY REFORMS"

Page 2, after line 25, insert:

**"EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment and applies to members appointed after April 1, 2017. If the senate adjourns the 2017 legislative session without confirming an appointee appointed after April 1, 2017, that appointee may serve until the senate denies confirmation of that appointee."

Page 7, line 29, after the period, insert "Money recovered under this section is transferred by July 1, 2017, to the commissioner of management and budget for deposit in the general reserve account established under Minnesota Statutes, section 297E.021, subdivision 4."

Page 7, delete line 30

Page 8, before line 1, insert:

"Sec. 20. **TEMPORARY TRANSFER OF SUITE FOR USE BY NONPROFIT.**

The Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority must assign its rights to one stadium suite under the Stadium Use Agreement with the NFL team, as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 473J.03, to a nonprofit charitable organization affiliated with and designated by the NFL team. This assignment must begin on the effective date of this act and must terminate on the day that a plan developed under section 21 for use of the suite is effective."

Page 8, line 7, after the period, insert "In developing its recommendations, the commission shall consult with the legislative auditor, the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority, the primary tenant of the stadium, the stadium marketing and management firm engaged by the authority, and the commissioner of management and budget."

Page 8, delete section 22 and insert:

"Sec. 23. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This act is effective the day following final enactment. The terms of all current members of the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority terminate May 31, 2017. Appointing authorities must appoint new members of the authority by May 10, 2017, to serve terms beginning June 1, 2017."

Page 8, after line 14, insert:

**"ARTICLE 2****METROPOLITAN SPORTS FACILITIES COMMISSION TECHNICAL CHANGES**

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 13.55, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Not public classification.** The following data received, created, or maintained by or for publicly owned and operated convention facilities, civic center authorities, or the ~~Metropolitan Minnesota Sports Facilities Commission~~ Authority are classified as nonpublic data pursuant to section 13.02, subdivision 9; or private data on individuals pursuant to section 13.02, subdivision 12:

- (a) a letter or other documentation from any person who makes inquiry to or who is contacted by the facility regarding the availability of the facility for staging events;
- (b) identity of firms and corporations which contact the facility;
- (c) type of event which they wish to stage in the facility;
- (d) suggested terms of rentals; and
- (e) responses of authority staff to these inquiries.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 340A.404, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Cities.** (a) A city may issue an on-sale intoxicating liquor license to the following establishments located within its jurisdiction:

- (1) hotels;
- (2) restaurants;
- (3) bowling centers;
- (4) clubs or congressionally chartered veterans organizations with the approval of the commissioner, provided that the organization has been in existence for at least three years and liquor sales will only be to members and bona fide guests, except that a club may permit the general public to participate in a wine tasting conducted at the club under section 340A.419;
- (5) sports facilities, restaurants, clubs, or bars located on land owned or leased by the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority; and
- ~~(6) sports facilities located on land owned by the Metropolitan Sports Commission; and~~
- ~~(7)~~ (6) exclusive liquor stores.

(b) A city may issue an on-sale intoxicating liquor license, an on-sale wine license, or an on-sale malt liquor license to a theater within the city, notwithstanding any law, local ordinance, or charter provision. A license issued under this paragraph authorizes sales on all days of the week to persons attending events at the theater.



(c) A city may issue an on-sale intoxicating liquor license, an on-sale wine license, or an on-sale malt liquor license to a convention center within the city, notwithstanding any law, local ordinance, or charter provision. A license issued under this paragraph authorizes sales on all days of the week to persons attending events at the convention center. This paragraph does not apply to convention centers located in the seven-county metropolitan area.

(d) A city may issue an on-sale wine license and an on-sale malt liquor license to a person who is the owner of a summer collegiate league baseball team, or to a person holding a concessions or management contract with the owner, for beverage sales at a ballpark or stadium located within the city for the purposes of summer collegiate league baseball games at the ballpark or stadium, notwithstanding any law, local ordinance, or charter provision. A license issued under this paragraph authorizes sales on all days of the week to persons attending baseball games at the ballpark or stadium.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 352.01, subdivision 2a, is amended to read:

Subd. 2a. **Included employees.** (a) "State employee" includes:

- (1) employees of the Minnesota Historical Society;
- (2) employees of the State Horticultural Society;
- (3) employees of the Minnesota Crop Improvement Association;
- (4) employees of the adjutant general whose salaries are paid from federal funds and who are not covered by any federal civilian employees retirement system;
- (5) employees of the Minnesota State Colleges and Universities who are employed under the university or college activities program;
- (6) currently contributing employees covered by the system who are temporarily employed by the legislature during a legislative session or any currently contributing employee employed for any special service as defined in subdivision 2b, clause (6);
- (7) employees of the legislature who are appointed without a limit on the duration of their employment;
- (8) trainees who are employed on a full-time established training program performing the duties of the classified position for which they will be eligible to receive immediate appointment at the completion of the training period;
- (9) employees of the Minnesota Safety Council;
- (10) any employees who are on authorized leave of absence from the Transit Operating Division of the former Metropolitan Transit Commission and who are employed by the labor organization which is the exclusive bargaining agent representing employees of the Transit Operating Division;
- (11) employees of the Metropolitan Council, Metropolitan Parks and Open Space Commission, ~~Metropolitan Sports Facilities Commission,~~ or Metropolitan Mosquito Control Commission unless

excluded under subdivision 2b or are covered by another public pension fund or plan under section 473.415, subdivision 3;

(12) judges of the Tax Court;

(13) personnel who were employed on June 30, 1992, by the University of Minnesota in the management, operation, or maintenance of its heating plant facilities, whose employment transfers to an employer assuming operation of the heating plant facilities, so long as the person is employed at the University of Minnesota heating plant by that employer or by its successor organization;

(14) personnel who are employed as seasonal employees in the classified or unclassified service;

(15) persons who are employed by the Department of Commerce as a peace officer in the Commerce Fraud Bureau under section 45.0135 who have attained the mandatory retirement age specified in section 43A.34, subdivision 4;

(16) employees of the University of Minnesota unless excluded under subdivision 2b, clause (3);

(17) employees of the Middle Management Association whose employment began after July 1, 2007, and to whom section 352.029 does not apply;

(18) employees of the Minnesota Government Engineers Council to whom section 352.029 does not apply;

(19) employees of the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority;

(20) employees of the Minnesota Association of Professional Employees;

(21) employees of the Minnesota State Retirement System;

(22) employees of the State Agricultural Society;

(23) employees of the Gillette Children's Hospital Board who were employed in the state unclassified service at the former Gillette Children's Hospital on March 28, 1974; and

(24) if approved for coverage by the Board of Directors of Conservation Corps Minnesota, employees of Conservation Corps Minnesota so employed on June 30, 2003.

(b) Employees specified in paragraph (a), clause (13), are included employees under paragraph (a) if employer and employee contributions are made in a timely manner in the amounts required by section 352.04. Employee contributions must be deducted from salary. Employer contributions are the sole obligation of the employer assuming operation of the University of Minnesota heating plant facilities or any successor organizations to that employer.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 473.121, subdivision 5a, is amended to read:

Subd. 5a. **Metropolitan agency.** "Metropolitan agency" means the Metropolitan Parks and Open Space Commission; and the Metropolitan Airports Commission; ~~and Metropolitan Sports Facilities Commission.~~

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 473.164, is amended to read:

**473.164 ~~SPORTS, AIRPORT COMMISSIONS~~ COMMISSION TO PAY COUNCIL COSTS.**

Subdivision 1. **Annually reimburse.** ~~The Metropolitan Sports Facilities Commission and the Metropolitan Airports Commission~~ shall annually reimburse the council for costs incurred by the council in the discharge of its responsibilities relating to the commission. The costs may be charged against any revenue sources of the commission as determined by the commission.

Subd. 2. **Estimates, budget, transfer.** On or before May 1 of each year, the council shall transmit to ~~each~~ the commission an estimate of the costs which the council will incur in the discharge of its responsibilities related to the commission in the next budget year including, without limitation, costs in connection with the preparation, review, implementation and defense of plans, programs and budgets of the commission. ~~Each~~ The commission shall include the estimates in its budget for the next budget year and may transmit its comments concerning the estimated amount to the council during the budget review process. Prior to December 15 of each year, the amount budgeted by ~~each~~ the commission for the next budget year may be changed following approval by the council. During each budget year, the commission shall transfer budgeted funds to the council in advance when requested by the council.

Subd. 3. **Final statement.** At the conclusion of each budget year, the council, in cooperation with ~~each~~ the commission, shall adopt a final statement of costs incurred by the council for ~~each~~ the commission. Where costs incurred in the budget year have exceeded the amount budgeted, ~~each~~ the commission shall transfer to the council the additional moneys needed to pay the amount of the costs in excess of the amount budgeted, and shall include a sum in its next budget. Any excess of budgeted costs over actual costs may be retained by the council and applied to the payment of budgeted costs in the next year.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 473.565, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **In MSRS; exceptions.** All employees of the former commission shall be members of the Minnesota State Retirement System with respect to service rendered on or after May 17, 1977, except as provided in this section.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 473.755, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Bylaws.** The authority shall adopt bylaws to establish rules of procedure, the powers and duties of its officers, and other matters relating to the governance of the authority and the exercise of its powers. Except as provided in this section, the bylaws adopted under this subdivision shall be similar in form and substance to bylaws adopted by the Metropolitan Sports Facilities Commission pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 473.553.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 473.763, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Acquisition.** Subject to the rules of Major League Baseball, the governor ~~and the Metropolitan Sports Facilities Commission~~ must attempt to facilitate the formation of a corporation to acquire the baseball franchise and to identify an individual private managing owner of the

corporation. The corporation formed to acquire the franchise shall have a capital structure in compliance with all of the following provisions:

(1) there may be two classes of capital stock: common stock and preferred stock. Both classes of stock must give holders voting rights with respect to any relocation or voluntary contraction of the franchise;

(2) the private managing owner must own no less than 25 percent and no more than 35 percent of the common stock. For purposes of this restriction, shares of common stock owned by the private managing owner include shares of common stock owned by any related taxpayer as defined in section 1313(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Other than the rights of all other holders of common stock and preferred stock with respect to relocation or voluntary contraction of the franchise, the private managing owner must control all aspects of the operation of the corporation;

(3) other than the private managing owner, no individual or entity may own more than five percent of the common stock of the corporation;

(4) at least 50 percent of the ownership of the common stock must be sold to members of the general public in a general solicitation and a person or entity must not own more than one percent of common stock of the corporation; and

(5) the articles of incorporation, bylaws, and other governing documents must provide that the franchise may not move outside of the state or agree to voluntary contraction without approval of at least 75 percent of the shares of common stock and at least 75 percent of the shares of preferred stock. Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, these 75 percent approval requirements shall not be amended by the shareholders or by any other means.

Except as specifically provided by Laws 2006, chapter 257, no state agency may spend money from any state fund for the purpose of generating revenue under this subdivision or for the purpose of providing operating support or defraying operating losses of a professional baseball franchise.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 473J.13, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Public access.** The authority will work to maximize access for public and amateur sports, community, and civic events, and other public events in type and on terms consistent with those ~~currently~~ held at the ~~existing~~ football stadium, as defined in Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 473.551, subdivision 9. The authority may provide that these events have exclusive use of the premises at agreed-upon times subject to the scheduling rights of the NFL team under the lease or use agreement.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 473J.25, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Metropolitan Sports Facilities Commission abolished; interim powers conferred on authority.** Upon transfer to the authority of all remaining assets, liabilities, and obligations of the Metropolitan Sports Facilities Commission, in subdivision 2, the Metropolitan Sports Facilities Commission is abolished. When the remaining assets, liabilities, and obligations of the Metropolitan Sports Facilities Commission have been transferred to the authority and the commission has been abolished, the powers and duties of the commission under Minnesota Statutes 2012, sections 473.551

to 473.599, and any other law shall devolve upon the authority, in addition to the powers and duties of the authority under chapter 473J, until the first NFL home game is played at the stadium.

Sec. 11. **REPEALER.**

Minnesota Statutes 2016, sections 137.50, subdivision 5; 473.551; 473.552; 473.553, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13; 473.556, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 16, and 17; 473.561; 473.564, subdivisions 2 and 3; 473.572; 473.581; 473.592, subdivision 1; 473.595; 473.598; 473.599; and 473.76, are repealed.

Sec. 12. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

Sections 1 to 11 are effective June 30, 2017."

Renumber the sections in sequence and correct the internal references

Amend the title accordingly

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

Senator Marty moved to amend H.F. No. 778, the unofficial engrossment, as follows:

Page 8, delete lines 5 and 6

Page 8, line 7, delete everything before the period and insert "the future use, sale, or transfer of one or both suites in the NFL stadium owned by the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority. The report shall review the potential for an amendment to the use agreement with the primary tenant and shall discuss the potential revenue available from the sale or lease of one or both suites, and the potential of other means of benefiting the public, such as making the suites available for use by charitable organizations"

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

Senator Kiffmeyer moved to amend H.F. No. 778, the unofficial engrossment, as follows:

Page 1, after line 20, insert:

"Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 43A.38, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 10. **Publicly owned facilities.** This section applies to the members and employees of the public governing bodies responsible for management of publicly owned facilities, including sporting facilities, arenas, and performance venues. Personal use of the facility or a portion of the facility at no or reduced cost constitutes a "gift" under this section."

Renumber the sections in sequence and correct the internal references

Amend the title accordingly

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

H.F. No. 778 was read the third time, as amended, and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill, as amended.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 64 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dziedzic	Ingebrigtsen	Little	Rosen
Anderson, B.	Eaton	Isaacson	Lourey	Ruud
Anderson, P.	Eichorn	Jasinski	Marty	Schoen
Bakk	Eken	Jensen	Mathews	Senjem
Benson	Fischbach	Johnson	Miller	Simonson
Carlson	Franzen	Kent	Nelson	Sparks
Chamberlain	Frentz	Kiffmeyer	Newman	Tomassoni
Champion	Gazelka	Klein	Newton	Utke
Cohen	Goggin	Koran	Osmek	Weber
Cwodzinski	Hawj	Laine	Pappas	Westrom
Dahms	Hayden	Lang	Pratt	Wiger
Dibble	Hoffman	Latz	Relph	Wiklund
Draheim	Housley	Limmer	Rest	

So the bill, as amended, was passed and its title was agreed to.

### RECESS

Senator Gazelka moved that the Senate do now recess subject to the call of the President. The motion prevailed.

After a brief recess, the President called the Senate to order.

### SPECIAL ORDER

**S.F. No. 879:** A bill for an act relating to insurance; regulating the Minnesota Joint Underwriting Association; authorizing the association to provide liquor liability and certain medical malpractice coverage; amending Minnesota Statutes 2016, sections 62I.02; 62I.03; 62I.05; 62I.06; 62I.07; 62I.08; 62I.13; 62I.14; 62I.15; 62I.16; 62I.17; 62I.19; 62I.21; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2016, sections 62F.01, subdivision 1; 62F.02; 62F.03; 62F.04, subdivisions 1, 2, 2a, 3; 62F.05; 62F.06; 62F.07; 62F.08; 62F.09; 62F.10; 62F.11; 62F.12; 62F.13; 62F.14; Minnesota Rules, part 2791.0100.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 65 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dahms	Gazelka	Jensen	Little
Anderson, B.	Dibble	Goggin	Johnson	Lourey
Anderson, P.	Draheim	Hall	Kent	Marty
Bakk	Dziedzic	Hawj	Kiffmeyer	Mathews
Benson	Eaton	Hayden	Klein	Miller
Carlson	Eichorn	Hoffman	Koran	Nelson
Chamberlain	Eken	Housley	Laine	Newman
Champion	Fischbach	Ingebrigtsen	Lang	Newton
Cohen	Franzen	Isaacson	Latz	Osmek
Cwodzinski	Frentz	Jasinski	Limmer	Pappas

Pratt	Rosen	Senjem	Tomassoni	Westrom
Relph	Ruud	Simonson	Utke	Wiger
Rest	Schoen	Sparks	Weber	Wiklund

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

### SPECIAL ORDER

**S.F. No. 997:** A bill for an act relating to health insurance; requiring coverage under health plans for certain prescription eye drops refills; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 62A.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 65 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dziedzic	Housley	Limmer	Rest
Anderson, B.	Eaton	Ingebrigtsen	Little	Rosen
Anderson, P.	Eichorn	Isaacson	Lourey	Ruud
Bakk	Eken	Jasinski	Marty	Schoen
Benson	Fischbach	Jensen	Mathews	Senjem
Carlson	Franzen	Johnson	Miller	Simonson
Chamberlain	Frentz	Kent	Nelson	Sparks
Champion	Gazelka	Kiffmeyer	Newman	Tomassoni
Cohen	Goggin	Klein	Newton	Utke
Cwodzinski	Hall	Koran	Osmek	Weber
Dahms	Hawj	Laine	Pappas	Westrom
Dibble	Hayden	Lang	Pratt	Wiger
Draheim	Hoffman	Latz	Relph	Wiklund

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

### SPECIAL ORDER

**S.F. No. 1627:** A bill for an act relating to health; requiring health plans to indicate level of coverage for certain anticancer medication; amending Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 62A.3075.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 64 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Anderson, B.	Cwodzinski	Fischbach	Hoffman	Kiffmeyer
Anderson, P.	Dahms	Franzen	Housley	Klein
Bakk	Dibble	Frentz	Ingebrigtsen	Koran
Benson	Draheim	Gazelka	Isaacson	Laine
Carlson	Dziedzic	Goggin	Jasinski	Lang
Chamberlain	Eaton	Hall	Jensen	Latz
Champion	Eichorn	Hawj	Johnson	Limmer
Cohen	Eken	Hayden	Kent	Little

Lourey	Newman	Relph	Senjem	Weber
Marty	Newton	Rest	Simonson	Westrom
Mathews	Osmek	Rosen	Sparks	Wiger
Miller	Pappas	Ruud	Tomassoni	Wiklund
Nelson	Pratt	Schoen	Utke	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

### SPECIAL ORDER

**S.F. No. 1549:** A bill for an act relating to unemployment insurance; adopting recommendations of the Unemployment Insurance Advisory Council; amending Minnesota Statutes 2016, sections 268.031, subdivision 1; 268.035, subdivisions 15, 20, 21d, 23, 30; 268.042, subdivision 1; 268.046, subdivision 3; 268.051, subdivisions 1, 9; 268.065, subdivision 2; 268.07, subdivisions 2, 3a, 3b; 268.085, subdivisions 1, 6, 7, 12, 13, 13a; 268.0865, subdivision 5; 268.095, subdivisions 1, 2, 5; 268.101, subdivision 2; 268.105, subdivision 2; 268.131; 268.18, subdivisions 2, 2b, 5; 268.182; 268.184; 268.194, subdivisions 1, 4; repealing Laws 2005, chapter 112, article 1, section 14.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 64 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Anderson, B.	Eaton	Ingebrigtsen	Little	Rosen
Anderson, P.	Eichorn	Isaacson	Lourey	Ruud
Bakk	Eken	Jasinski	Marty	Schoen
Benson	Fischbach	Jensen	Mathews	Senjem
Carlson	Franzen	Johnson	Miller	Simonson
Chamberlain	Frentz	Kent	Nelson	Sparks
Champion	Gazelka	Kiffmeyer	Newman	Tomassoni
Cohen	Goggin	Klein	Newton	Utke
Cwodzinski	Hall	Koran	Osmek	Weber
Dahms	Hawj	Laine	Pappas	Westrom
Dibble	Hayden	Lang	Pratt	Wiger
Draheim	Hoffman	Latz	Relph	Wiklund
Dziedzic	Housley	Limmer	Rest	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

### SPECIAL ORDER

**S.F. No. 1457:** A bill for an act relating to labor and industry; making housekeeping changes; modifying employment agents and construction codes and licensing; regulating combative sports; modifying OSHA regulations; amending Minnesota Statutes 2016, sections 182.653, subdivision 9; 182.67, subdivision 1; 184.38, subdivision 17; 184.41; 326B.095; 326B.127, subdivision 5; 326B.133, subdivision 8; 326B.164, subdivisions 1, 3, 6, 7; 326B.439; 326B.46, subdivision 2; 326B.91, subdivisions 3, 6; 326B.92, subdivision 2; 326B.921, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7; 326B.922; 326B.925, subdivision 1; 341.25; 341.27; 341.321; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 326B.37, subdivision 15; Minnesota Rules, parts 5200.0780; 5226.0100; 5226.0200; 5226.0300.



Senator Bakk moved to amend S.F. No. 1457 as follows:

Page 1, after line 14, insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2016, section 181A.04, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Time of day, ~~under 18 high school students~~.** A high school student ~~under the age of 18~~ must not be permitted to work after 11:00 p.m. on an evening before a school day or before 5:00 a.m. on a school day, except:

(1) as permitted by section 181A.07, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, and 4; or

(2) for a high school student age 18 or older, if the student provides a written request to the employer to work during the restricted hours. If a high school student under the age of 18 has supplied the employer with a note signed by the parent or guardian of the student, the student may be permitted to work until 11:30 p.m. on the evening before a school day and beginning at 4:30 a.m. on a school day.

For the purpose of this subdivision, a high school student does not include a student enrolled in an alternative education program approved by the commissioner of education or an area learning center, including area learning centers under sections 123A.05 to 123A.08 or according to section 122A.163."

Renumber the sections in sequence and correct the internal references

Amend the title accordingly

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

S.F. No. 1457 was read the third time, as amended, and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill, as amended.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 65 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dziedzic	Housley	Limmer	Rest
Anderson, B.	Eaton	Ingebrigtsen	Little	Rosen
Anderson, P.	Eichorn	Isaacson	Lourey	Ruud
Bakk	Eken	Jasinski	Marty	Schoen
Benson	Fischbach	Jensen	Mathews	Senjem
Carlson	Franzen	Johnson	Miller	Simonson
Chamberlain	Frentz	Kent	Nelson	Sparks
Champion	Gazelka	Kiffmeyer	Newman	Tomassoni
Cohen	Goggin	Klein	Newton	Utke
Cwodzinski	Hall	Koran	Osmek	Weber
Dahms	Hawj	Laine	Pappas	Westrom
Dibble	Hayden	Lang	Pratt	Wiger
Draheim	Hoffman	Latz	Relph	Wiklund

So the bill, as amended, was passed and its title was agreed to.

**MEMBERS EXCUSED**

Senators Clausen and Torres Ray were excused from the Session of today. Senator Hall was excused from the Session of today from 11:30 to 11:40 a.m. Senator Abeler was excused from the Session of today from 11:45 to 11:55 a.m.

**ADJOURNMENT**

Senator Gazelka moved that the Senate do now adjourn until 11:00 a.m., Monday, May 1, 2017. The motion prevailed.

Cal R. Ludeman, Secretary of the Senate